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Section 83A Carve-out Questions & Answers 
July 21, 2015 
 
 
Q1 Could you please confirm if solar photovoltaic projects will be accepted under this RFP? If so, 

would a project that combines solar PV with batteries also be eligible? 

 A1 No, the DOER has determined that solar PV is not an eligible technology for this RFP.  One of the 

Eligible Technologies for the purposes of this solicitation, however, is “Solar thermal electric: solar 

energy used to generate electricity by heating up a fluid.”  Please see the Determination of Eligible 

Technologies issued by the DOER. 

 

Q2 I have reviewed your presentation materials for the RFP for “Long-Term Contracts for Newly 

Developed, Small, Emerging or Diverse Renewable Energy Distributed Generation Facilities”. 

As I understand the material, eligible projects are restricted to those that interconnect with three 
Massachusetts distribution companies, which effectively limits participation to projects located in 
Massachusetts. 
 
So for example, if TransCanada proposed a project in the RFP that was located in New Hampshire, 
interconnecting with New Hampshire distribution affiliates of Eversource, Unitil, or Liberty, would that 
project be considered ineligible for participation? During the bidder’s conference, I was provided the 
answer that such a project would be ineligible.  
 
If the answer to that question is yes, could you explain how that requirement is consistent with the 
Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities Order in Docket DPU 10-58, issued on June 9, 2010, in 
which a similar in-state RFP requirement was reversed? Specifically, that order eliminated the 
language requiring projects to be located “. . . within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, its 
waters, and adjacent federal waters.” The result of that Order was a reduction in cost to NSTAR 
customers of 40% when the RFP was opened to out-of-state projects. 
 
 A2 Section 83A of the Green Communities Act requires the electric distribution companies in 

Massachusetts to solicit proposals for long-term contracts for Class I renewable energy projects.  That 

Section provides that 10 percent of the aggregate level of long-term contracts solicited under that 

Section will be reserved for “newly developed, small, emerging or diverse renewable energy distributed 

generation facilities . . .  which are located within each distribution company’s service territory.”   

The Department of Public Utilities has promulgated regulations consistent with this statutory provision 

at 220 C.M.R. § 21.00 et seq.  The scope of such regulations applies to electric distribution companies 

within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  220 C.M.R. § 21.01(2)(a).  Each of the distribution 

companies subject to this provision, i.e., Fitchburg Gas and Electric Light Company d/b/a Unitil, 

Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company d/b/a National Grid, NSTAR Electric 

Company and Western Massachusetts Electric Company each d/b/a Eversource Energy, meet the scope 

of the Department’s regulations at 220 C.M.R. § 21.00 et seq. and, moreover, provide distribution 
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service in Massachusetts only.  Moreover, G.L. c. 164, § 1 defines the term “service territory” as “the 

geographic area in which a distribution company provided distribution service on July 1, 1997.”  The 

geographic areas in which each of the above-referenced distribution companies provided distribution 

service on July 1, 1997, are located within Massachusetts.   

The Department’s Order in D.P.U. 10-58 does not address either Section 83A or the Department’s 

regulations at 220 C.M.R. 21.00 et seq.  Rather, it addressed Section 83 of the Green Communities Act 

and the Department’s original regulations promulgated in 220 C.M.R. § 17.00 et seq.  Accordingly, the 

Department’s order in D.P.U. 10-58 is inapplicable to this RFP.  Moreover, the RFP is consistent with 

Section 83A of the Green Communities Act, 220 C.M.R. § 21.00 et seq., and G.L. c. 164, § 1 (definition of 

“service territory”), and was approved by the Department in D.P.U. 15-42 for issuance to potential 

bidders. 

The DOER has interpreted Section 83A in a manner consistent with the Massachusetts distribution 

companies.  On October 23, 2013, and as amended October 15, 2014, the MA DOER issued a 

Determination of Eligible Technologies ruling detailing the eligible technologies under the 10% carve-out 

in that section of the Green Communities Act.  That Determination included the requirement that an 

eligible project be located within the service territory of the utility that services its location and be 

connected at the distribution system level of that utility.  The RFP was issued in compliance with those 

provisions, and those provisions do not allow projects located outside of the service territories of the 

Massachusetts electric distribution companies (including the service territories of affiliates of those 

companies) to be eligible for this RFP.  To the extent that the Green Communities Act or any other law 

or regulation supporting this solicitation, or any action of a regulatory agency implementing such law or 

regulation, or the Power Purchase Agreement itself is determined to be invalid, the PPAs resulting from 

this solicitation may be terminated.  Please refer to Section 19.6 of the updated draft form of Power 

Purchase Agreement.  While, for the reasons stated above, the DOER and the distribution companies do 

not believe that there is any sound basis for a legal challenge to the statute or regulations authorizing 

this solicitation, it is prudent to incorporate provisions in that Agreement that address the implications 

of such a determination in the unlikely event it should occur. 

 

Q3 Section 4.7 of the standard contract requires the Seller to transfer all environmental attributes 

to the Buyer.  Do environmental attributes include credits generated by Seller that qualify under the 

Massachusetts Alternative Portfolio Standard? 

 A3  The definition of “Environmental Attributes” included in the model Power Purchase Agreement 

attached to the RFP would include, without limitation, credits that qualify under the Massachusetts 

Alternative Portfolio Standard, and those credits would therefore be included in the Products to be 

transferred to the applicable electric distribution company under that Power Purchase Agreement. The 

electric distribution companies understand, however, that projects qualifying under the Massachusetts 

Alternative Portfolio Standard may wish to retain the value of the credits associated with that 

qualification.  Under Section 2.2.4.3 of the RFP, bidders may propose changes to the model Power 
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Purchase Agreement in their bids.  To the extent a bidder proposes to exclude credits qualifying under 

the Massachusetts Alternative Portfolio Standard from its bid, that bidder should reflect that proposal in 

its mark-up of the Power Purchase Agreement submitted with its bid, which mark-up will be evaluated 

by the applicable electric distribution company.  The electric distribution companies expect that for any 

bid in which the bidder retains attributes of value from its Facility, the price for the Products to be sold 

will be reduced by the value of those attributes. 

 

Q4:   Re: 3.1 Critical Milestones – we must choose a Construction Date and Operation Date. 

According to sec. 3.1, these must be before July ’17 & ’18, respectively. However, we can get 

extensions on these dates per sec. 3.1 (C). So we must declare dates according to 3.1(a) but these are 

not ‘hard’ dates and can be extended out up to two years, or July ’19 & ’20. Correct? 

Is there any issue with being conservative on our dates and commencing construction/operation 
earlier than our stated date? 

 A4: Section 3.1(a) of the model Power Purchase Agreement includes deadlines for the 
commencement of construction and the Commercial Operation Date of July 1, 2017 and July 1, 2018, 
respectively.    Seller may elect to extend all of the deadlines dates for the Critical Milestones in Section 
3.1(a) not yet achieved (i) by one year without posting additional Development Period Security and (ii) 
by up to two additional six month periods by posting additional Development Period Security of $10 per 
kWh of Contract Maximum Amount for each such six-month period.  In no event may Seller exercise the 
right to extend the Critical Milestone dates by more than two years (in addition to any extensions for 
Force Majeure under Section 10.1 of the Power Purchase Agreement, not to exceed one year).  These 
are “hard” dates that will be reflected in the Power Purchase Agreement.   

There is no penalty for commencing construction or achieving the Commercial Operation Date in 
advance of the deadlines in Section 3.1(a) of the Power Purchase Agreement.   

While the PPA includes a “hard” date for achievement of commercial operation, Bidders are required to 
include the expected commercial operation date for the project.  As part of the evaluation, the 
likelihood and feasibility of each project meeting the proposed commercial operation date will be 
considered.   

 

Q5 My company is submitting an NTB this Thursday but our Site Control doc is a LOI with the site 
owner to lease the land.  Our agreement does not use the word "unconditional" (as specified in the 
RFP section paragraph on Site Control).  What does National Grid really mean by this?  Can I send you 
our LOI (a blacked-out version for now) and you can let me know if this would be sufficient for 
National Grid's purposes at this time?  I would hate to be precluded from bidding due to not having 
executed our final agreement with the landowner before August 6th... 

 
 A5  The RFP requires that “bidders must provide documentation showing that they own or lease (or 

have executed an unconditional option to own or lease) the site on which the proposed project will be 

located, and that they have any additional rights required to develop, operate, and interconnect the 
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project at the site.”  Any document provided in compliance with this requirement must clearly 

demonstrate that the bidder either has the adequate rights in the project land or has an option to 

obtain those rights that has no condition to be satisfied by the bidder other than the exercise of the 

option.  While such an option does not need to include the word “unconditional,” there must be no 

conditions on the exercise of the option, including no conditions related to the payment of an exercise 

price.  It is unlikely that a letter of intent would satisfy this requirement.  The electric distribution 

companies will not review bid documentation for compliance with the RFP prior to the formal 

submission of a bid. 

 

Q6 If a facility has a current SQA for a portion of the production, is a request of DOER a 

determination as to whether the technology to be proposed in the project is eligible under the Section 

83A Carve-out required?  

For each facility the installed nameplate on the current SQA is for 300kW and 500kW. The facilities 
would be expanded to the 1MW minimum capacity under the PPA. 

A6 Inquiries regarding specific qualification status (i.e. project size change) should be 

communicated directly to Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources.  As previously reported, 

Eligible Facilities are required to submit an RPS Class I Statement of Qualification Application with the 

DOER and receive either a Statement of Qualification or conditional Statement of Qualification from 

DOER, for participation in the program.  For purposes of bid submittal, a Statement of Qualification or a 

conditional Statement of Qualification from DOER should reflect the facility as proposed under the 

Section 83A Carve-out RFP.  The capacity of the facility proposed under the RFP must match the capacity 

associated with the DOER Statement of Qualification or conditional Statement of Qualification.  

 

http://www.mass.gov/eea/energy-utilities-clean-tech/renewable-energy/rps-aps/rps-aps-sqa/rps-class-i-statement-of-qualification-application.html

